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Head Office: Amin Court (3 Floor) Registered Office:
62-63 Motijheel C/A, Dhaka- 1000. Saydana, K.B Bazar, Joydebpur
Gazipur-1700.

Notice of the 35th Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 35th Annual General Meeting of Standard Ceramic Industries Ltd. will be held on
Saturday, December 28, 2019 at 10:00 A.M. at the Factory premises of the Company at Saydana, K.B Bazar,
Joydevpur, Gazipur to transact the following business:

AGENDA
1. To confirm the proceedings of the 34th Annual General Meeting held on December 27, 2018.
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on June 30, 2019
together with reports of the Auditors and the Directors thereon.
To declare dividend for the year ended 30 June, 2019.
To elect Directors in place of those retiring by rotation.
To appoint Auditors of the company for the year 2019-20 and to fix their remuneration.
To approve the appointment of Independent Director.
To appoint Corporate Governance Compliance Auditor of the company for the year 2019-20 and to fix their remuneration.
To approve enhancement of remuneration and perquisites of Managing Director and Operative Director.
To transact any other business which may be transacted at an Annual General Meeting with the permission of the
Chair

N

© N Ok W

By order of the Board of Directors

Dated: November 18, 2019 9

(Jamal Uddin Bhuiyan)
Company Secretary.

Notes:

a) November 18, 2019, is the Record Date. Shareholder whose names will appear in the Members Register of the
company or in the Depository Register on Record Date will be eligible to attend the Annual General Meeting and
receive dividend.

b) A member entitled to attend and vote at the General Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his/her
behalf. The proxy form, duly stamped, must be deposited at the Head Office of the Company not later than 48
hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

c) Admission to the venue of meeting shall be allowed only on presentation of the attendance slip sent with the Annual
Report.

d) No gift or benefit in cash or kind shall be paid to the shareholders of the company at the Annual General Meeting as
per BSEC notification.
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STATISTICAL PERFORMANCE

OF LAST FIVE YEARS

Five Years Key Operating and Financial Data

As at 30 June Tk./000

ftems 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Property, Plant & Equipment 128,385 119,994 111,902 117,655 109,366
Deferred Exp. 0 0 0 0 3,910
Net Current assets (10,183) (11,726) (14,180) (9,864) (5,455)
Total Assets 118,202 108,268 97,722 107,791 107,821
Paid-up-Capital 64,607 64,607 64,607 64,607 64,607
Share Premium 14,650 14,650 14,650 14,650 14,650
Retained Earnings (125) (9,251) (19,437) (10,446) (10,024)
Tax Holiday Reserve 1,064 1,064 1,064 1,064 1,064
Revaluation reserve 25,592 25,592 26,384 26,384 26,384
Total equity 105,788 96,662 87,268 96,259 96,681
Deferred Tax Liabilities 12,415 11,607 10,454 11,532 11,140
Share holders equity & Deferred Tax  41g202 | 108268 | 97722 | 107791 | 107821
Current Assets 119,775 99,028 84,415 92,273 103,577
Current Liabilities 129,958 110,754 98,595 102,137 109,033
Net Asset Value (NAV) per ShareTk. 16.37 14.96 13.51 14.90 15.82
Net Operating Cash Flow per share
(NOCFPS) 1.45 (0.65) (0.29) 0.27 1.61
Face value of share Tk.10/=
Tk./000
Items
2018-19 2017-18 | 2016-2017 | 2015-2016 | 2014-2015
Revenue 323,854 294,970 263,368 291,867 285,359
Less Cost of goods sold Items (255,601) | (228,137) | (222,973) | (232,882) | (229,167)
Gross profit 68,253 66,833 40,395 58,985 56,192
Less: Administrative and Selling expenses | (50,009) (48,054) (40,606) (43,665) (40,253)
Interest charges & write off (3,786) (4425) (2,814) (6,758) (11,830)
Other income 1,053 712 997 2,647 3,101
(52,742) (51,767) (42,423) (47,776) | (48,982 )
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax 15,511 15,067 (2,028) 11,209 7,210
Contribution of WPPF (776) (753) 0 (533) (344 )
14,735 14314 (2,028) 10,676 6,866
#:is: Provision for Income Tax & Deferred (4,686) (4.128) (502) (3.802) 2,822
Net profit/(Loss) 10,049 10,186 (2,530) 6,874 9,688
Earnings per share(EPS) Tk. 1.56 1.58 (0.39) 1.06 1.50
0,
2%(for Public i
Y 0, H 0,
Cash Dividend 5% only | Shareholder nil 10% only Shareholder
only) only)
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— 15.44% Admin & Selling exp.
78.92%
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=~ 4479
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STANDARD CERAMIC INDUSTRIES LTD.
Amin Court (31 Floor), 62-63, Motijheel C/A,
Dhaka- 1000, Bangladesh.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT AT THE
35TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Dear Shareholders,

We, on behalf of the Board of Directors, feel privileged to welcome you to the 35th Annual General Meeting of your
Company and have the pleasure in presenting before you the Annual Report together with Annual audited financial
statements for the year ended on 30t June 2019.

General Economics & Economic condition:

The Competition in the market increased due to which, the percentage of Gross Profit on Sales decreased. The
Company increased sales volume by not increasing sales price; though cost of materials increased. Company could
not increase product price due to unfavourable market conditions. Further the spending capacity of consumers during
the year has not been accelerated.

Industry outlook
Directors are trying hard to expand and explore market not only in our country but also in the other countries.

Possible future development
Production capacity and Quality Improvement;
For enhancement of capacity and improvement of quality directors have decided to setup some new machineries.

Cost Reduction
For reduction of cost, Directors are trying to set up new machinery in place of old machinery.

Segment-wise or product-wise performance
No segmental reporting is applicable for the company as the Company operates in a single industry segment and it is
very difficult to separation of Product wise performance reporting.

Risks and concerns

(a)Interest Rate Risk

The Company has neither borrowed local fund at flexible rate nor borrowed any fund in foreign currency. Hence the
increase in interest rate will not increase financial cost.

(b) Exchange rate risk

Company always adjusts exchange risk for imported raw materials through increasing products price but in 2018-19
from the profit margin.

(c)Market Risk

The company is continuously upgrading its quality to minimise the market risks.

(d) Operational Risk (Non-availabilities of Materials /Mechanical Failure of Equipments)
The Company has its scientific inventory management system and equipped with power backup which reduces
operational risks.

(e) Trade Policy risk

Trade policy risk refers to the increase competition in the market due to change of trade policy. Increase of duty on
imported raw-materials and decrease of duty on imported finished goods will increase risks The Company continuously
carries out research and development activities according to the customer choice which reduces industry risk.
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State of Company's Affairs (Analysis of Cost of goods sold Gross profit margin, Net profit margin) :

Turnover amounted to Taka 323.85 million in the year 2018-2019 as against taka 294.97 million in the year 2017-
2018. This year cost of goods sold Taka 255.60 million as against 228.14 million in the year 2017-2018. The gross
profit for the year was Taka 68.25 million as against Taka 66.83 million of the previous year showing increase of
2.13%. The gross profit ratio decrease by 1.58%.

Particulars Figure in Thousand (‘000) Tk.
2018-2019 2017-2018
Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax etc. 15,511 15,067
Less:WPPF (775) (753)
Less:Provision for tax etc. (3878) (3,767)
Add: Deferred Tax (Exps)/Income (808) (362)
Net Profit /(Loss )after Tax etc. 10,050 10,185
Less: Previous years Retained Earnings/ Accumulated Profit/(Loss) (10,179) (19,436)
Dividend / Proposed Dividend (3,230 (924)
Retained Earnings)/Accumulated Profit / (Loss) (3,355) (10,175)

Contribution to National Exchequer:
Your company contributed a total amount of Taka 59.2 million to the National Exchequer in the form of Custom duty,
AIT, VAT, except gas, electricity bill etc, during the year under report.

Continuity of Extra-ordinary Gain or Loss:
There is no extra- ordinary gain or loss during the year under report

Related party transaction
Company was not connected to related party transactions except note no-38.

Dividend

Despite of the fact that the Company has a total negative Retained earnings of taka (10.175) million at the beginning
of the year which decreased our reserve position, the Company earned a net profit of taka 10.05 million during the
year. Board of Directors have given attention to adjust negative balance of Retained earnings. In this situation, the
Board of Directors has recommended cash dividend @ 5% on face value of share for all the shareholders from the profit
of this year.

Utilisation of Proceeds from Public Issue, right issue and through any others instruments

The Company did not raise share capital through Public Issue, right issue and through any other instruments during
the year 2018-2019. However, the company raised its capital in 1996. The proceeds of the issue have been utilized in
repaying Long Term Loan

Significant variance between Quarterly Financial performances and Annual financial statements
There were no significant variances significant variance between Quarterly Financial performances and Annual
financial statements.

Remuneration of Directors and Independent Director
Remuneration of the Directors have been disclosed in the accounts note no.22. On the other hand, Independent Directors
did not receive any remuneration except meeting fees.
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Directors’ Responsibilities Statement :

Pursuant to BSEC notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated: 03 June, 2018 the Directors
confirm that:

The Company has complied the requirements of Corporate Governance as required by the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Acoordlngly, the Directors are pleased to confirm the following:

The Financial Statements together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies
Act 1994 Financial Reporting Act, 2015 and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules 1987. These statements
present fairly the Company's state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flow and changes in equity.

Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

Appropriate Accounting Policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements and the
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with IAS/IFRS.

The system of internal control is sound and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The key operating and financial data for the last five years is disclosed in Page no.5

No Bonus share or stock dividend has been declared as interim dividend.

The majority shareholders did not oppress any minority shareholders. The interest of minority shareholders was
protected as required by Companies Act.

Significant deviation in operating results compared to previous year

There was no significant deviation in operating results compared to previous year. Disclosure as per requirement of
Schedule XI, Part Il of the Companies Act, 1994 have been disclosed in page no-53.

Board Meetings and Attendance :

The

Board of Directors consisted of 8 members and during the year seven Board meetings were held.

The attendance record of the Directors is as follows:

SI# | Name of the Directors Position Meeting attended Remarks

01. | Mr. AK.M. Jahangir Khan Chairman 7

02. | Mr. Helal Uddin Ahmed Managing Director 7

03. | Mr. Lutfur Rahman Director 6

04. | Mr. Enamul Magsud Operative Director 7

05. | Mr. Nasir Uddin Ahmed Director 7

06. | Mr. AK.M. Alamgir Khan Director 7

07. | Mr. AK Mizanur Rahman, FCA Independent Director 5 .
Retired

08. | Mr. M.Ismail Independent Director 6

09. | Mr. AZM Nazrul Haque Independent Director 0 Date of appointment:
06.11.2019

The Directors not attending the meetings were granted leave of absence.

Subsidiary Company
The Company has no subsidiary company.

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
The position of the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer stand separated.

0o}
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Duties of CEO and CFO

The provision of BSEC regulations has been complied.

Shareholding Structure:
The pattern of shareholding is as follows:

SI# | Name wise details Shares held

01. | Mr. AK:M. Jahangir Khan, Chairman 2,25,450

02. | Mr. Helal Uddin Ahmed, Managing Director 3,73,880

03. Mr. Lutfur Rahman, Director 3,73,880

04. Mr. Nasir Uddin Ahmed, Director 3,73,880

05. Mr. Enamul Magsud, Director 2,06,892

06. Mr. A.K.M Alamgir Khan, Director 2,59,080

07. | Mr. A.Z.M Nazrul Haque (Independent Director) nil

08 Mr. M.Ismail (Independent Director) nil

09. | Mr. Jamal Uddin Bhuiyan, Company Secretary. nil

10. Mr. Abdur Rahim, Chief Financial Officer. nil

11. | Mr. Serajul Islam, Head of Internal Audit and Compliance. nil
Executives:

12 Mr. S.M Mamun Kabir, General Manager. nil

13 Mr. Md. Abu Taher, Senior Manager (Import). 10

14 Mr. Mushfigur Rahman, Manager Export 150

15. | Mr. Hedayet Hossain, Manager (Admin) nil

16. | Mr. Kazal Or-Rashid, Dy. Manager (Custom ) nil

Retirement of Directors and their Re-election :

(1) Mr. A.K.M Jahangir Khan, (2) Mr. Lutfur Rahman and (3) Mr. A.K.M Alamgir Khan, Directors of the company who
retired by rotation as per Article 44 of the Articles of Association of the Company, offered themselves for re-
appointment and being eligible may be re-appointment.

Brief resume of above Directors:

1. Mr. A.K.M Jahangir Khan - Director.

Mr. A.K.M Jahangir Khan is a pioneer in the business world of Bangladesh. He is the sponsor Director of the company
and also a Director of the Peoples Ceramic Industries Ltd.. His other business ventures include the first dry dock-yard
called 'Delta Dockyard & Engineering Works Ltd.", an inland shipping company called 'Khatun Navigation Ltd." and
'Alamgir Pictures Ltd." which was a major entity in the entertainment industry in the 70's and 80's. Mr. Khan won
national award in 1986.

(2) Mr. Lutfur Rahman -Director.

Mr. Luthfur Rahman is an honors graduate of Dhaka University and started his career with Peoples ceramic Industries
Ltd (PCI Ltd.) in the 80’s. He was also involved with Standard Ceramic Industries Ltd. in the early year of the
Company. Mr. Rahman is the Managing Director of P.C.I Ltd. was general Secretary of Bangladesh Ceramic
Wares Manufacturers’ Association (BCWMA), life member of IBA of Dhaka University & AOTS, Japan.

(3) Mr. A.K.M Alamgir Khan -Director.

Mr. A.K.M Alamgir Khan is an M.B.A from IBA, DU. He is the director of the company. He was one of the earliest
entries from the private sector in CNG through Delta CNG. Mr. Alamgir worked for 3 years as Consultant in Heidelberg
Cement. He is a registered Professional Fellow with the US State Department. Mr. Alamgir also a life member of
Dhaka Club, MBA Club efc.
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Appointment of Independent Director

The board of directors in it's meeting held on 11.06.2019 unanimously appointed Mr. A.Z.M Nazrul Haque as
independent director of the company for 3(three) years. The appointment is placed before the 35th Annual General
Meeting for approval by the shareholders.

Brief resume

Mr. A.Z.M Nazrul Haque- Independent Director

Mr. A.Z.M Nazrul Haque obtained B.Com (Hons) M.Com in Management in the year 1971 from Dhaka University. He
was engaged in Teaching profession in the Department of Management of the then Govt. Jagannath University
College. Mr. Haque also served in Ceramic Industries in deferent position and gathered vast experience.

Management discussion and analysis on company’s position and operation
Refer to Annexure -D, Page no-24

Report of the audit committee
Refer to Annexure -E, Page no-25-26

MD & CFO'S Declaration on Financial Statements
Refer to Annexure -A, Page no-13

Certificate on compliance with conditions of corporate governance code
Refer to Annexure -B, Page no-14

Report of the Nomination and Remuneration the Nomination committee (NRC)

NRC committee was formed consisting of the following members.

Particulars Position in the committee
1. Mr. A.Z.M Nazrul Haque, Independent Director. Chairman
2. Mr. Lutfur Rahman, Director. Member
3. Mr. A.K.M Alamgir Khan, Director. Member

A meeting was held during the year, the committee was playing its role as per guide line of BSEC, No top level
executive was appointed & no change was made for Directors remuneration

Corporate Governance Compliance Report:
In accordance with the requirement of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, "Corporate Governance
Compliance Report" is annexed ( Annexure —C).

Appointment of Auditors :

Presently M/s. FAMES & R, Chartered Accountants, House no-424 (4th Floor) Road # 30 Mohakhali DOHS, Dhaka-
1206, Bangladesh is the auditors of the Company whose period of appointment will expire on 35th AGM as well as
they will fulfill conditions of appointment of three consecutive years period. As per Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission notification the company shall not appoint any firm of Chartered Accountants as its statutory
Auditors for a consecutive period exceeding three years. M/S. MABS & J Partners, Chartered Accountants, SMC
Tower (7th Floor), 33 Banani C/A, Road No. 17, Dhaka-1213, Bangladesh offered themselves for appointment as
auditors of the Company for the year 2019-20. Accordingly, the Board of Directors recommended that MABS & J
Partners, Chartered Accountants, be appointed as Auditor for the financial year 2019-20 subject to the approval of he
Shareholders in the AGM with Tk. 225,000/= (Taka.Two lacs twenty five thousand) only as their remuneration for audit
works only.

Annual Report 2018-2019 \11\



Appointment of Corporate Governance Compliance Auditors

Presently M/s. M Ahmed & Co , Chartered Accountants, "Shakila's Dream" House # 12-13 (Ground Floor), Suit #
103, Road # 5, Block # A, Kaderabad Housing Society, Mohammadpur, Dhaka-1207 Bangladesh is the Corporate
Governance Compliance auditors of the Company. They offered themselves for re-appointment as compliance
auditors of the Company for the year 2019-2020. Accordingly, the Board of Directors recommended that M/s. M
Ahmed & Co, Chartered Accountants, be appointed as compliance Auditors for the financial year 2019-2020 subject to
the approval of the Shareholders in the AGM.

Acknowledgement :

We, on behalf of the Board of Directors of the company, express our sincere gratitude and thanks to all the respected
Shareholders, Investors, Banks, Financial Institutions, Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Stock
Exchanges, CDBL, ICB, Government Agencies, News & Press Media, Suppliers, Customers and employees of the
company for their continued support & co-operation.

Conclusion :

Finally, we, on behalf of the Board of Directors express our deep appreciation to all workers, Staff and Officers, both in
the Head Office and Factory for their dedicated hard work rendered during the year and hope that they will continue to
maintain spirit of team work in the coming years for the continued growth of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Cﬂimma’i/‘“‘ﬂ T -

Date: 27 October, 2019 (Enamul Magsud) (Helal Uddin Ahmed)
Place: Dhaka Director Managing Director
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MD & CFO'S Declaration on Financial Statements Annexure- A

Date: 27 October, 2019
The Board of Directors
Standard Ceramic Industries Limited

62-63 Motijheel C/A
Dhaka-1000.

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 30 June 2019.

Dear Sirs,
Pursuant to Condition No. 1 (5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission's Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/
Admin/80, dated 03 June 2018 under Section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969,

we do hereby declare that:

(1) The Financial Statements of Standard Ceramic Industries Ltd. for the year ended on 30 June 2019 have been
prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial Reporting
Standards (I FRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed;

(2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable basis, in
order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company's state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly
presented in its financial statements;

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control and
maintenance of accounting records;

(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established policies
and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

(6) The Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is
appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that:-
(i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30 June 2019 and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:
(@) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;
(b) These statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards and applicable laws.
(ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which
are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the Company's Board of Directors or its members.

C Sincerely yours
— %\\S \‘ \p ’

(Helal Uddin Ahmed) (Md. Abdur Rahim)
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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Annexure- B
As per condition no. 1(5)(xxvii)

O, AREAT 9T (FIR Shakila's Dream, House # 12-13,
BIGTC OFISTHHH Mob : 01713032449 (Ground Floor), Suit # 103, Road #5,
M. AHMED & Co. E-Mail: mahmed_co.1961@yahoo.com  Block# A, Kaderabad Housing
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Society, Mohammadpur, Dhaka-1207.

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Report to the Shareholders of Standard Ceramic Industries Limited on compliance on the Corporate Governance
Code.

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Standard Ceramic Industries Limited
for the year ended 30™ June, 1019. This Code relates to the Notification No.BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80,
dated: 3rd June, 2018 of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our examination was
limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Management in ensuring compliance to the
conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the Corporate
Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by
Institute of Chartered Securities of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any
conditions of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and after due Scrutiny
and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as stipulated in the above
mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission;

b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by this Code;

c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the Companies Act, 1994, the
securities laws and other relevant laws; and

d) The Governance of the company is satisfactory.

ﬂ\d( .)Mwa/"v P A

Md. Muzaffar Ahmed, FCA
M. Ahmed & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place; Dhaka
Dated: 27 October, 2019.
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Annexure- C
Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission's Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/ 2006-
158/207/Admin/80, dated 03 June, 2018 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969:
(Report under Condition No. 9.00)

Condition Title Compliance status
No. ("v" has been putin
the appropriate
column)
Complied Not Remarks (If
complied any)
1. Board of Directors(BoD)
1(1) Size of the Board of Directors v
The total number of members of a company’s Board of Directors v - The Boards of
(hereinafter referred to as “Board”) shall not to be less than 5 (five) and Directors is
more than 20 (twenty). comprised of 8
Directors
including 02
Independent
Directors
1(2) Independent Directors -
1(2) (@) | At least one fifth (1/5) of the total number of directors in the company's v -
board shall be independent directors; any fraction shall be considered to
the next integer or whole number for calculating number of independent
director(s);
1(2) (b)(i) | Who either does not hold any share in the company or holds less than one v -
percent (1%) shares of the total paid-up shares of the company;
1(2) (b)(ii) | Who is not a sponsor of the company and is not connected with the v -
company’s any sponsor or director or nominated director or shareholder of
the company or any of its associates, sister concerns, subsidiaries and
parents or holding entities who holds one percent (1%) or more shares of
the total paid-up shares of the company on the basis of family relationship
and his or her family members also shall not hold above mentioned shares
in the company:
1(2) (b)(iii) | Who has not been an executive of the company in immediately preceding v -
2 (two) financial years;
1(2) (b)(iv) | Who does not have any other relationship, whether pecuniary or otherwise, v -
with the company or its subsidiary or associated companies;
1(2) (b)(v) | Who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right Entitlement Certificate) v -
holder, director, or officer of any stock exchange;
1(2) (b)(vi) | Who is not a shareholder, director excepting independent direct or officer v -

of any member or TREC holder of stock exchange or an intermediary of
the capital market;

1(2) (b)(vii) | Who is not a partner or an executive or was not a partner or an executive v -
during the preceding 3 (three) years of the concerned company’s statutory
audit firm or audit firm engaged in internal audit services or audit firm
conducting special audit or professional certifying compliance of this Code;

1(2) (b)(viii) | Who is not an independent director in more than 5 (five) listed v - -
companies;
1(2) (b)(ix) | Who has not been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction as a v - -

defaulter in payment of any loan or any advance to a bank or a Non-Bank
Financial Institution (NBFI);

1(2) (b)(x) | Who has not been convicted for a criminal offence involving moral v - -
turpitude.

1(2) (c) | The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the board of directors v - -
and approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting (AGM).

1(2) (d) | The post of independent director(s) cannot remain vacant for more than v -
90(ninety) days.

1(2) (e) | The tenure of office of an independent director shall be for a period of 4

3(three) years, which may be extended for 1(one) term only.
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Qualification of Independent Director

Independent director shall be a knowledgeable individual with integrity who
is able to ensure compliance with financial, regulatory and corporate laws
and can make meaning full contribution to business.

Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of an unlisted
company having minimum paid -up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or any
listed company or a member of any national or international chamber of
commerce or business association;

NA

1(3) (b)(ii

Corporate Leader who is or was a top-level executive not lower than Chief
Executive officer or Managing Director or Deputy Managing Director or
Chief Financial Officer or Head of Finance or Accounts or Company
Secretary or Head of Internal Audit and Compliance or Head of Legal
Service or a candidate with equivalent position of an

unlisted company having minimum paid up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or
of a listed company;

NA

1(3) (b)(iii)

Former official of government or statutory or autonomous or regulatory
body in the position not below 5th Grade of the national pay scale, who has
at least educational background of bachelor's degree in economics or
commerce or business or law;

NA

13) (b)(iv)

University Teacher who has educational background in Economics or
Commerce or Business Studies or Law;

NA

1(3) (b)(v)

Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least in the High
Court Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court or a Chartered Accountant or
Cost and Management Accountant or Chartered Financial Analyst or
Chartered Certified Accountant or Certified Public Accountant or Chartered
Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary or equivalent
qualification;

The independent director(s) shall have at least 10 (ten) years of
experiences in any field mentioned in clause (b);

In special cases, the above qualifications or experiences may be relaxed
subject to prior approval of the Commission.

NA

Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing D

irector or C

hief Executi

ve Officer NA

The positions of the Chairperson of the Board and the Managing Director
(MD) and /or Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of the company shall be filled
by different individuals;

v

1(4)(b)

The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of a
listed company shall not hold the same position in another listed company;

1(4)(c)

The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among the non-
executive directors of the company;

1(4)(d)

The Board shall clearly define respective roles and responsibilities of the
Chairperson and the Managing Director and/ or Chief Executive officer;

1(4)(e)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the remaining members
may elect one of themselves from non-executive directors as chairperson
for that particular Board’'s meeting; the reason of absence of the regular
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

< <« <

The Directors’  Report to the Shareholders

An industry outlook and possible future developments in the
industry

The Segment-wise or product-wise performance;

Risks and concerns including internal and external risk factors, threat to
sustainability and negative impact on environment, if any;

A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit
Margin, where applicable;

A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary activities and their
impliacations (gain or loss);

NN N N A AN

A detiled discussion on related party transactions along with a statement
showing amount, nature of related party, nature of transactions and basis
of transactions of all related party transactions;
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1(5)(vii) A statement of utilization of proceeds raised through public issues, rights - - N/A
issues and/ or through any other instruments;
1(5)(viii) | An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the company goes - - N/A
for Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public Offering (RPO). Rights
Share Offer, Direct Listing, etc;
1(5)(ix) An explanation on any significant variance that occurs between Quarterly v - -
Financial Performance and Annual Financial Statements;
1(5)(x) statement of remuneration paid to the directors including v - -
independent directors;
1(5)(xi) A statement that the financial statements prepared by the management of v - -
the issuer company present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity;
1(5)(xii) A statement that proper books of account of the issuer company have v - -
been maintained;
1(5)(xiii) | A statement that appropriate accounting policies have been consistently v - -
applied in preparation of the financial statements and that the accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;
1(5)(xiv) | A statement that International Accounting Standards (IAS)or International v - -
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have
been followed in preparation of the financial statements and any departure
there from has been adequately disclosed;
1(5)(xv) A statement that the system of internal control is sound in design and has v - -
been effectively implemented and monitored;
1(5)(xvi) | A statement that minority shareholders have been protected from abusive v - -
actions by, or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either
directly or indirectly and have effective means of redress;
1(5)(xvii) | A statement that there is no Significant doubt upon the issuer company’s v - -
ability to continue as going concern, if the issuer company is not
considered to be a going
concern, the fact along with reasons there of shall be disclosed;
1(5)(xviii) | An explanation that significant deviations from the last year's operating v - -
results of the issuer company shall be highlighted and the reasons thereof
shall be explained;
1(5)(xix) | A statement where key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5 v - -
(five) years shall be summarized;
1(5)(xx) An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has not declared - - N/A
dividend (cash or stock) for the year;
1(5)(xxi) Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock dividend has v - NA
been or shall be declared as interim dividend;
1(5)(xxii) | The total number of Board meetings held during the year and attendance v - -
by each director;
1(5)(xxiii) | A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the aggregate number of v - -
shares (along with name-wise details where stated below) held by:-
1(5)(xxiii)( | Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other related parties - NA
a) (name -wise details);
1(5)(xxiii)(b) | Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial v - -
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and Compliance their spouses and minor
children (name- wise details);
1(5)(xxiii)(c) | Executives; v - -
1(5)(xxiii)(d) | Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in the v - -
company (name wise details).
1(5)(xxiv) | In case of the appointment or reappointment of a director, a disclosure on v - -
the following information to the shareholders: -
1(5)(xxiv)( | a brief resume of the director v - -
a)
1(5)(xxiv)(b | nature of hisiher expertise in specific functional areas; v - -
)
1(5)(xxiv)(c) | Names of companies in which the person also holds the directorship and v - -

the membership of committees of the board.
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1(5)(xxv)

A management’s Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD presenting detailed analysis of the company’s position

1(5)(>)<ﬂ)(a

and operations along with a brief discussion of changes in financial statements, among others, focusing on
v

Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statements;

1(8)(xxv)(b)

Changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any, clearly describing
the effect on financial performance or results and financial position as well
as cash flows in absolute figure for such changes;

1(8)(xxv)(c)

Comparative analysis (including effects of inflation) of financial performance or
results and financial position as well as cash flows for current financial year with
immediately preceding five years explaining reasons thereof;

1(3)(xxv)(d)

compare such financial performance or results and financial position as
well as cash flows with the peer industry scenario;

1(8)(xxv)(e)

briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the country and the
globe;

1(8)xxv)()

risks and concerns issues related to the financial statements, explaining
such risk and concerns mitigation plan of the company; and

1(8)(xxv)(g)

future plan or projection or forecast for company’s operation, performance
and financial position, with justification thereof, i.e., actual position shall be
explained to the shareholders in the next AGM;

N N NS

1(5) (xxvi)

Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the Board as required
under condition No. 3(3) shall be disclosed as per Annexure-A; and

<\

1(5) (xxvil)

The report as well as certificate regarding compliance of conditions of this
code as required under condition No. 9 shall be disclosed as per
Annexure-B and Annexure-C.

1(6)

Meetings of the Board of Directors

The company shall conduct its Board meetings and record the minutes of
the meetings as well as keep required books and records in line with the
provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in
so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this
Code.

Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board Members
and Chief Executive Officer

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC),
for the Chairperson of the Board, other board members and Chief
Executive Officer of the company

Being formulated
NRC

The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be posted on the
website of the company

Will be complied
after finanlization
of the code of
conduct

Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company

Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of the holding company
shall be made applicable to the composition of the Board of the subsidiary
company;

N/A

At least 1 (one) independent director of the Board of the holding company
shall be a director on the Board of the subsidiary company;

N/A

The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary company shall be placed
for review at the following Board meeting of the holding company.

N/A

The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding company shall
state that they have reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary company also;

N/A

The Audit Committee of the holding company shall also review the financial
statements, in particular the investments made by the subsidiary company.

N/A

Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer

and Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS)

(CFO), Head of Internal Audit

The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive
Officer (CEO), a Company Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
and a Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC);

v

The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO),
Company Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and a Head of Internal
Audit and Compliance (HIAC) shall be filled by different individuals;
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The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company shall not hold
any executive position in any other company at the same time;

The Board shall clearly define respective roles, responsibilities and duties
of the CFO, the HIAC and the CS;

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed from their
position without approval of the Board as well as immediate dissemination
to the Commission and stock exchange(s).

Requirement to attend Board of Director’ s Meetings

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company shall attend the
meetings of the Board:

v

Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEQO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have reviewed financial statements for the year and that to

the best of their knowledge and belief

v

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit
any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

v

These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and
applicable laws;

v

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, to the best of
knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during
the year which are fraudulent illegal or violation of the code of conduct for
the company’s Board or its member;

The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be disclosed in the
Annual Report

v

Board of Directors Committee. For ensuring good governance in the co

following sub-committees:

mpany, the Board shall have at least

Audit Committee;

v

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

v

Audit Committee

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

The company shall have an Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the
Board;

v
v

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board of Directors in ensuring that
the financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company and in ensuring a good monitoring system within the
business;

The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board; the duties of the
Audit Committee shall be clearly set forth in writing.

The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) members;

The Board shall appoint members of the audit committee who shall benon-

executive directors of the company excepting Chairperson of the Board
and shall include at least 1(one) independent director;

AN

All members of the audit committee should be “financially literate” and at
least | (one) member shall have accounting or related financial
management background and 10(ten)years of such experience;

When the term of service of any Committee members expires or there is
any circumstance causing any Committee member to be unable to hold
office before expiration of the term of service, thus making the number of
the Committee members to be lower than the prescribed number of 3
(three) persons, the Board shall appoint the new Committee member to fill
up the vacancy immediately or not later than 1 (one) month from the date
of vacancy in the Committee to ensure continuity of the

performance of work of the Audit Committee;

5(2)(e)

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee.

5(2)(f)

The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not constitute without at
least 1 (one) independent director.

NAN

5(3)(a)

The Board of Directors shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit Committee

to be Chairperson of the Audit Committee, who shall be an Independent
director;
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In the absence of the Chairperson of the audit committee, the remaining
members may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for that particular
meeting, in that case there shall be no problem of constituting a quorum as
required under condition No.5(4)(b) and the reason of absence of the
regular chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

Noted

Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present in the Annual
General Meeting (AGM):

The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four meetings in a financial
year: Provided that any emergency meeting in addition to regular meeting
may be convened at the request of any one of the members of the
Committee;

The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee shall be constituted in
presence of either two members or two third of the members of the Audit
Committee, whichever is higher, where presence of an independent
director is @ must.

The Audit Committee shall:

Oversee the financial reporting process;

Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles;

NN NS

Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is
adequately resourced, including approval of the Internal Audit and
Compliance plan and review of the Internal Audit and Compliance Report;

Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.

Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the annual
financial statements before submission to the Board for approval or
adoption;

AN

Review along with the management, the annual financial statements
before submission to the board for approval;

Review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial
statements before submission to the board for approval;

Review the adequacy of internal audit function;

Review the Management’s Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in
the Annual Report;

Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the
management;

Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued
by statutory auditors.

Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude,
level of experise deployed and time required for effective audit and evalute
the performance of external auditors;

S NN Ny

Oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial public Offering (IPO)
or Repeat public Offering (RPO) or Rights Share offer have brrn utilized as
per the purpose stated in relevent offer document or prospectus approved
by the Commission:

Reporting of the Audit Committee

Reporting to the Board of Directors

v

The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the Board.

v

The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board of Directors on the following findings, if any: -

report on conflicts of interests;

v

No such
Incidence arose

suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect identified in
the internal internal audit and compliance process or in the financial
statements; control system;

v

No such
Incidence arose

suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances including
securities related laws, rules and regulations; -

No such
Incidence arose

any other matter which the Audit Committee deems necessary shall be
disclosed to the Board immediately;

No such
Incidence arose
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Reporting to the Authorities: -

If the Audit Committee has reported to the Board about anything which has
material impact on the financial condition and results of operation and has
discussed with the Board and the management that any rectification is
necessary and if the Audit Committee finds that such rectification has been
unreasonably ignored, the Audit Committee shall report such finding to the
Commission, upon reporting of such matters to the Board for three times or
completion of a period of 6 (six) months from the date of first reporting to
the Board, whichever is earlier.

v - No such
reportable
incidence arose

Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors Report on activities
carried out by the Audit Committee, including any report made to the Board
under condition 5(6)(a)(ii) above during the year, shall be signed by the
Chairperson of the Audit Committee and disclosed in the annual report of
the issuer company.

Nomination and remuneration Committee (NRC).

Formed in the Board of Directors
meeting held on 18/8/2018.

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) as a subcommittee of the Board;

v - -

The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or
policy for determining qualifications, positive attributes, experiences and
independence of directors and top-level executive as well as a policy for
formal process of considering remuneration of directors, top level
executive;

v - -

The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be clearly set forth in
writing covering the areas stated at the condition No. 6(5)(b).

Constitution of the NRC

The Committee shall comprise of at least three members including an
independent director;

All member of the Committee shall be non-executive directors;

Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed by the
Board;

The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any member of the
Committee;

- - Noted

In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal of any member of
the Committee or in any other cases of vacancies, the board shall fill the
vacancy within 180 (one hundred eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in
the Committee;

-- -- No such case

in arise after

formation of
NRC

The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt any external
expert and/ or member(s) of staff to the Committee as advisor who shall be
non-voting member,if the Chairperson feels that advice or suggestion form
such external expert and/or

member(s) of staff shall be required or valuable for the Committee;

- - Noted

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee;

The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without attendance of
at least an independent director;

AN

No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or indirectly, any
remuneration forany advisory or consultancy role or otherwise, other than
Director’s fees or honorarium

from the company.

Chairperson of the NRC

The Board shall select 1(one) member of the NRC to be Chairperson of the
Committee, who shall be an independent director;

In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining members
may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for that particular meeting,
the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in
the minutes;

N - Noted

The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual general meeting
(AGM) to answer the queries of the shareholders:

- v Will attend in
upcoming
AGM.
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Meeting of the NRC

The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial year; v -

The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency meeting upon - - Noted
request by any member of the NRC;

The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in presence of v - -

either two members or two third of the members of the Committee,
whichever is higher, where presence of an independent director is must as
required under condition No. 6(2)(h);

The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be recorded in the v - -
minutes and such minutes shall be confirmed in the next meeting of the

NRC.

Role of the NRC

NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the Board v - -
and to the shareholders;

NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report v - -
with recommendation to the Board:

Formulating the ceiteria for determining qualifications, positive atteibutes v - -

and independence of a director and recommend a policy to the Board,
relating to the remuneration of the directors, top level executive,
considering the following:

6(5)(b)(i)(@) | The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to v - -

attract, retain and motivate suitable directors to run the company
successfully;

6(5)(b)(i)(b) | The relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets v - -

appropriate performance benchmarks; and

6(5)(b)(i)(c) | Remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between v - -

fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals;

6(5)(b)(ii) | Devising a policy on Board's diversity taking into consideration age, 4 - -

gender, experience, ethnicity, educational background and nationality;

6(5)(b)(iii) | Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be

<\

appointed in top level executive position in accordance with the ceiteria laid
down, and recommend their appointment and removal to the Board;

6(5)(b)(iv) | Formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent

directors and the Board;

6(5)(b)(v) | Identifying the company’s needs for employees at different levels and

determine their selection, transfer or replacement and promotion criteria;

6(5)(b)(vi) | Developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company’s human

resources and training policies;

S EENEERNEEEN

The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy and - Noted
the evaluation criteria and activities of NRC during the year at a glance in

its annual report.

External or Statutory Auditors

The issuer shall not engage its external or statutory auditors to perform the following services of the company, namely:

Appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions;

Financial information system design and implementation;

Book-keeping or other services related to the accounting records or
financial statement;

(1) (iv) | Broker —dealer services;

Book-keeping or other services related to the accounting records or
financial statement;

iv) | Broker —dealer services;

Actuarial services;

Internal audit services or special audit services;

Any services that the Audit Committee determines.

SNENENENENEERNENERRNENEN

i) | Audit or certification services on compliance of corporate governance as
required under condition No.9(1);
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Any other service that creates conflict of interest

No Partner or employees of the external audit firms shall possess any
share of the company they audit at least during the tenure of their audit
assignment of that company; his or her family members also shall not hold
ant shares in the said company:

Representative of external or statutory auditors shall remain present in the
Shareholders’ Meeting (Annual General meeting or Extraordinary General
Meeting) to answer the queries of the shareholders.

Maintaining a website by the Company

The Company shall have an official website linked with the website of the
stock exchange.

The company shall keep the website functional from the date of listing.

The company shall make available the detailed disclosures on its website
as required under the regulations of the concerned stock exchange(s)

N

Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance

The company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing Professional
Accountant or Secretary (Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management
Accountant or Chartered Secretary) other than its statutory auditors or
audit firm on yearly basis regarding compliance of Corporate Governance
Code of the Commission and shall such certificate shall be disclosed in the
Annual Report.

The professional who will provide the certificate on compliance of this
Corporate Governance Code shall be appointed by the Shareholders in the
annual general meeting.

-- -- Board
recommended
the Professional
for
due appointment
by the
Shareholders in
35th AGM

on 28/12/2019

The directors of the company shall state, in accordance with the Annexure-
C attached, in the directors’ report whether the company has complied with
these conditions or not.

v - -
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ANNEXURE-D
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ON COMPANY’S POSITION AND OPERATION

In order to improve performances, the Management had formal & informal discussions on the affairs of the Company
with specific reference to the following. If gas is sufficiently and regularly available with required pressure and raw
materials are available, then performance of the company will improve.

a. Preparation of Financial Statements:

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual basis of accounting except
for Cash Flow Statement in accordance with the applicable International Accounting Standards and International
Financial Reporting Standards.

<) Changes in Accounting policies and Estimations
No change in accounting policies was recommended as the same were as per statutory requirement.

c. Financial performance and position of the Company:
The profitability, performance, liquidity of the Company are gradually improving. Position of this year is better than
previous year.

Turnover amounted to Taka 323.85 million in the year 2018-2019 as against taka 294.97 million in the year 2017-
2018. The gross profit for the year was Taka 68.25 million as against Taka 66.83 million of the previous year showing
increase of 2.12%. The gross profit ratio decreased by 1.58%. Note that detailed performance of the company is
stated page no.8. Comparative analysis & presentation of comparative data are placed in the report. Inflation factor in
expenses is compensated by increasing revenues.

d) Financial performance and position with peer industries:
Comparative figures for each line item are presented in reports for better understanding of the readers. No similar
industry of stoneware Tableware ( Listed Company) exists in the country. Therefore exact comparison is not
possible.

¢) Global and Local Economic Scenario:
The economic activities suffered adversely due to Liquidity Crises. As a result the Purchasing power of
customers reduced substantially.

d) Risk and mitigation
No major risk is foreseen to remain as going concern if Financial and Trade policies remain unchanged and Gas &
Electricity supply are sufficient. Risk and mitigation stated in the page no. 07.

¢) Future planning
The future plan is to sustain the progress and to keep the company as going concern. This will be explained to
shareholders in the AGM.

h) Financial & economic scenario of the Globe
Since the Ceramic Industries require 94% of Raw Materials to be imported, there is an uncertainty factor of
substantiality of business and increasing capability of International competitiveness. Further Dollar Price is
increasing every year which will adversely effect this business.

=%

Helal Uddin Ahmed
Managing Director
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ANNEXURE-E
REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
For the year ended 30 June 2019.

Under Condition No. 5 (7) of the Corporate Governance Code as adopted on 3 June 2018 by
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)

Audit Committee in Standard Ceramic Industries Limited (SCIL) is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors,
assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in
ensuring that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and in ensuring a
good monitoring system within the business. The Audit Committee be and is responsible to the Board of Directors. The
jurisdiction of the Audit Committee extends over the Company covering risk management with special emphasis on
ensuring compliance with all applicable legislation and regulation.

Composition and Meetings

Mr. M. Ismail, Independent Director Chairman

Mr. Lutfur Rahman, Director Member

Mr. A.K.M Alamgir Khan, Director Member

Mr. Jamal Uddin Bhuiyan Company Secretary

A total of 4 (Four) meetings were held during the year. Company Secretary of the Company functioned as the
Secretary to the Committee as per regulatory requirements. In addition to that the Chief Financial Officer, Head of
Internal Audit and Compliance attended the meetings on invitation and other officials were invited to attend the
meetings as and when the Committee required their presence.

The detail responsibilities of Audit Committee are well defined in the Terms of Reference (TOR). However, the major
roles of the Audit Committee are mentioned below:

(a) To review the quarterly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board for approval, adequacy of
internal audit function, Management’s Discussion and Analysis, statement of all related party transactions and
Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by statutory auditors etc.;

(b) To oversee the financial reporting process, hiring and performance of external auditors;
(c) To monitor choice of accounting policies, principles, Internal Audit and Compliance process etc.;

The Audit Committee reports on its activities to the Board of Directors. Audit Committee also immediately reports to
the Board of Directors on

a) report on conflicts of interests,

b) suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect in the internal control system,

¢) suspected infringement of laws, including securities related laws, rules and regulations,

d) any other matter which shall be disclosed to the Board of Directors.

The Committee considered the scope and methodology of the audits, as well as the independence, objectivity and
qualification of the external auditors. The Audit Committee reviewed the external audit works and concluded that the
financial reporting was satisfactory and in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles in Bangladesh
and that the audit was satisfactorily conducted. In connection with financial reporting, the Audit Committee also
reviewed the Company's financial statements. The Audit Committee concluded that all reported financial results have
been presented in accordance with applicable rules.

The audit committee has recommended the Board to appoint new external auditor of the company - MABS & J
Partners, Chartered Accountants, SMC Tower (7th Floor), 33 Banani C/A, Road No. 17, Dhaka-1213, Bangladesh as
the statutory auditors for the year 2019-2020.

Moreover, the Audit Committee reviewed SCIL's self-assessment of Corporate Governance practices, based on a
checklist provided by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). The Committee concluded that
Corporate Governance practices within SCIL to a greater extent exceeded the standards and also found few rooms to
improve further which are already on process.
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Besides these, the Audit Committee reviewed risk identification, assessment and mitigation methodologies, process
and management. The Committee concluded that risk management was satisfactory, with the formulation of highly
structured and well-defined risk categories, as well as the identification and review of the major risks affecting SCIL's
flow of operations and their impact in upcoming years.

The Audit Committee will continue to monitor the progress made by Internal Audit Division for "Risk Based Audit"
implementation by conducting random sampling of Corporate Governance and Ethics compliance issues, and
ensuring the clearance of outstanding items from previous years.

Summary of activities during the year
During the year under review the Committee, interalia, focused on the following activities:

a) Reviewed and recommended the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019 to the Board for
approval.

b) Reviewed the Management Letter from external auditors for the year under review along with management's
responses on the findings.

c) Reviewed the Auditors' Certification on Corporate Governance compliance for the year ended 30 June 2019.

d) Reviewed and ascertained that the internal control system including financial and operational controls, accounting
system, and reporting structure are adequate and effective.

e) Reviewed the periodical reports submitted by the Internal Auditors and recommended to the management regarding
proper and prompt resolution of the irregularitiesfissues stated therein.

f) Reviewed the actions taken by the management for implementation of Audit Committee observations on issues
deliberated in Audit Committee reports.

g) The Committee placed its reports regularly to the Board for reviewing and monitoring the activities recommended on
internal control system, compliance with rules and regulation of the regulatory bodies.

h) The Committee reviewed relevant quarterly Financial Statements during the year under review and recommended
to the Board for their approval.

i) Based on the above review and discussion, the Audit Committee is of the view that the internal control and

compliance procedures are adequate to present a true and fair view of the activities and financial status of the
Company.

P

M. Ismail
Chairman of the Audit Committee and Independent Director

Dated: 17th October, 2019
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I House # 424 (4th Floor), Road # 30, Mohakhali DOHS

Dhaka-1206, Phone : 9884049, 9587531
Mobile : 01715-001622, 01783-294818, 01706-446010
E-mail : fames1622@gmail.com

FAMES & R shahadatrashid67 @ gmail.com

I H-3/1 & 3/2 (Flat-A2), Bijoy Nagar, Dhaka-1000

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Mobile : 01819-496565, 01819-207889, 01731-925302

Independent Auditor's Report To the Shareholders of
Standard Ceramic Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Standard Ceramic Industries Limited, which comprise the statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2019, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of cash flows and statement of changes in equity for the year then ended 30 June 2019, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 30 June 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994 and other applicable laws and
regulations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirement that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Going Concern

We draw attention to note # 2.04 to the financial statements describe the matters about Going Concern issue of the
company where it has been mentioned that the credit facilities and resources of the company provides sufficient fund
to meet the requirements of its business.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below our description of how our audit addressed the matters provided in that context.

Risk | Our response to the risk
Valuation of Inventory

We contested the appropriateness of management’s
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net assumptions applied in calculating the value of the
realizable value. As a result, the Directors apply inventory provisions by:

judgment in determining the appropriate values for | > evaluating the design and implementation of key

slow-moving or obsolete items. inventory controls operating across the company;

> attending inventory counts and reconciling the count
Inventories are maintained by manual interfaces and results to the inventory listings to test the completeness
inputs, there is a risk that inappropriate management of data;
override and/or error may occur. > comparing the net realizable value, obtained through

a detailed review of sales subsequent to the year-end, to
the cost price of a sample of inventories and comparison
to the associated provision to assess whether inventory
provisions are complete;
> reviewing the historical accuracy of inventory provisioning,
and the level of inventory write-offs during the year.
Reference note no 2.07 and 04 to the financial statements
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Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

The economic climate and levels of competition Our audit procedures included, among others, considering
remain challenging for the company. The company | the impairment risk associated with the following
has completed a Strategic Review and as a result | different types of asset:

has decided to close or curtail some of its | » We critically assessed and cheeked the company’s

operations. Therefore there is a risk that the impairment model. This included consideration of
impairment charge may be misstated. discounted cash flow forecast.

» We have also considered the adequacy of the
Determining the level of impairment involves company’s disclosures about the degree of
forecasting and discounting future cash flows and estimation involved in determining the amount of
estimation of recoverable amounts which are impairment and the sensitivity to key assumptions
inherently uncertain. This is one of the key involved.

judgmental areas that our audit has concentrated on

Reference note no 2.06 and 03 to the financial statements

Measurement of Deferred Tax Liability
The company reports net deferred tax liability to {> We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and

totaling BDT 12,415,401 as at 30 June 2019. tested the operational effectiveness of the company’s key

controls over the recognition and measurement of DTAs
Significant judgment is required in relation to and the assumptions used in estimating the company’s
deferred tax liabilities as it is probable that taxable future taxable income.

profit will be reduced against which the taxable
temporary differences can be recognized over a |» We also assessed the completeness and accuracy of the
number of years. data used for the estimations of future taxable income.

» We involved tax specialists to assess key assumptions,
controls, recognition and measurement of DTA'’s.

Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation of
disclosures against IAS 12 Income Tax.

Reference note no 14 to the financial statements

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information in the
Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the
other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

> ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

> Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that gives a true and fair view.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, we also report the following:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appeared
from our examination of those books; and

c) The Company’s statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income with the report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) The expenditure incurred was for the purpose of the Company’s business. g
Al )
Dated: Dhaka FAMES & R
27 October 2019 Chartered Accountants
A Member Firm of
N~ PrimeGlobal I
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STANDARD CERAMIC INDUSTRIES LTD.
"AMIN COURT", 62-63 MOTIJHEEL C/A, DHAKA-1000.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June, 2019

Amount in Taka

Amount in Taka

Notes
Particulars - 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Property, Plantand Equipment 3 128,385,016 119,994,568
Current Assets
Inventories 4 79,403,960 66,231,617
Advances, Deposits and Pre-payments 5 25,117,768 14,744,439
Accounts Receivable 6 464,749 782,819
Short Term Investment 7 6,753,031 11,717,600
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 8,035,420 5,551,544
Total Current Assets 119,774,928 99,028,019
Total Assets 248,159,944 219,022,587
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Shareholder's equity:
Share Capital 9 64,606,500 64,606,500
Revaluation Reserve 10 25,592,345 25,592,345
Tax Holiday Reserve 11 1,063,500 1,063,500
Share Premium 12 14,650,000 14,650,000
Retained Earnings 13 (125,507) (9,250,640)
Total Shareholders' Equity 105,786,838 96,661,705
Non Current Liabilities
Deferred Tax 14 12,415,401 11,606,914
Current Liabilities
Cash Credit (Secured) 15 25,665,411 21,339,493
Bank Overdraft 16 4,142,370 3,153,107
Unclaimed Dividend 17 9,188,145 9,062,752
Creditors, Accrued expenses and Others 18 43,114,632 45473,718
Liabilites for other finance 19 47,847,147 31,724,898
Total Current Liabilities 129,957,705 110,753,968
Total Liabilities 142,373,106 122,360,882
Total Shareholders' Equity and Liabilities 248,159,944 219,022,587
Net Asset Value per share 39 16.37 14.96

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.These financial statements were
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 October, 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

Vo

(Helal Uddin Ahmed)
Managing Director

QLY

(Jamal Uddin Bhuiyan)
Company Secretary

=

(Lutfur Rahman)
Director

This is the Statement of Financial Position referred to in our separate renart of even date

FAMES & R
Chartered Accountants

Dated: 27 October, 2019
Place: Dhaka
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STANDARD CERAMIC INDUSTRIES LTD.
"AMIN COURT", 62-63 MOT IJHEEL C/A, DHAKA-1000.
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June, 2019

Amountin Taka Amountin Taka

Particulars Notes 30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Revenue 20 323,854,117 294,970,264
Less: Cost of Goods Sold 21 255,600,803 228,137,429
Gross Profit 68,253,314 66,832,835
Less: Operating Expenses: 50,009,184 48,053,855
Administrative Expenses 22 39,639,108 37,072,882
Selling and Distribution Expenses 23 10,370,076 10,980,973
Operating Profit/(Loss) 18,244,130 18,778,980
Add: Other Income 24 1,053,013 712,472
Less: Finance cost 25 3,786,378 4,424,632
Net Profit/ (Loss) before WPPF 15,510,765 15,066,820
Less: Workers Profit Participation Fund @ 5% 775,538 753,341

Net Profit/(Loss ) before Tax 14,735,227 14,313,479
Less: Provision for Tax: (4,686,178) (4,127,913)
Current Tax 26 (3,877,691) (3,766,705)
Deferred Tax (Expenses)/income 27 (808,487) (361,208)
Net Profit after Tax 10,049,049 10,185,566
Earning per share(EPS) 35 1.56 1.58

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.These financial statements were
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 October, 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

|
Q_% = < ;é@ \igf %
(Jamal Uddin Bhuiyan) (Helal Uddin Ahmed) (Lutfur Rahman)
Company Secretary Managing Director Director

This is the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income referred to in our separate report
of even date.

.Qg,m’gé.

Dated: 27 October, 2019 FAMES &R
Place: Dhaka Chartered Accountants
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STANDARD CERAMIC INDUSTRIES LTD.
"AMIN COURT", 62-63 MOT IJHEEL C/A, DHAKA-1000
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June, 2019
Amountin Taka

, Share Revaluation Tax Share Retained

Particulars ) ) i ) Total
Capital Reserve Holiday Premium Earnings

AsatJuly1,2018 64,606,500 25,592,345 1,063,500 14,650,000  (9,250,640) 96,661,705
Changes during the Year:
Cash Dividend (2017-18) (923,916) (923,916)
Profit after tax - - - - 10,049,049 10,049,049
As at June 30,2019 64,606,500 25,592,345 1,063,500 = 14,650,000 (125,507) 105,786,838

STANDARD CERAMIC INDUSTRIES LTD.
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June, 2018
Amountin Taka

. Share Revaluation Tax Share Retained

Particulars ) Total
Capital Reserve Holiday  Premium Earnings

AsatJuly1,2017 64,606,500 26,383,861 1,063,500 14,650,000 (19,436,206) 87,267,655
Changes during the Year:
Less: Deferred Tax on revaluation (791,516) (791,516)
reserve
Profit after tax - - - - 10,185,566 10,185,566
As at June 30,2018 64,606,500 25,592,345 1,063,500 14,650,000  (9,250,640) 96,661,705

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.These financial statements were authorized for issue by
the Board of Directors on 27 October, 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

0L AN e
(Jamal Uddin Bhuiyan) (Helal Uddin Ahmed) (Lutfur Rahman)
Company Secretary Managing Director Director

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our separate report of even date.

.@L{M&

Dated: 27 October, 2019 FAMES &R
Place: Dhaka Chartered Accountants
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STANDARD CERAMIC INDUSTRIES LTD.
"AMIN COURT", 62-63 MOTIJHEEL C/A, DHAKA-1000.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June, 2019

Particulars Note Amount in Taka Amountin Taka
30June 2019 30 June 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and others 395,402,343 327,169,269
Paid to suppliers, employees & others (378,273,541)| | (323,981,734)
Finance cost paid (3,786,378) (4,424,632)
Income Tax paid and/or deducted at source etc. (3,951,093) (2,963,098)
Net cash generated from operating activities 36 9,391,331 (4,200,195)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment (17,441,695) (16,444,871)
Interest Received 1,053,013 712,472
Short Term Investment 4,964,569 8,406,137
Net cash used in investing activities (11,424,113) (7,326,262)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Credit Loan (Paid)/Received 4,325,918 7,339,970
Dividend Paid (798,523) (153,495)
Bank overdraft (Paid)/Received 989,263 2,764,430
Net cash generated from financing activities 4,516,658 9,950,905
Netincrease/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,483,876 (1,575,552)
Cash and Cash equivalents at beginning of the year 5,551,544 7,127,096
Cash and Cash equivalents at end of the year 8,035,420 5,551,544
Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share 40 1.45 | | (0.65)|

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.These financial statements
were authori ed for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 October, 2019 and were signed on its behalf

QLY S

(Jamal Uddin Bhuiyan) (Helal Uddin Ahmed)
Company Secretary Managing Director

This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our separate report of even date.

Dated: 27 October, 2019
Place: Dhaka

%‘hﬁg

(Lutfur Rahman)
Director

.me*&

FAMES &R
Chartered Accountants
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STANDARD CERAMIC INDUSTRIES LTD.
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June, 2019

Structure and Objects:

The company is a public limited company registered on 13-08-84 with authorized Share capital of Tk. 10 crores
divided into 1 crore ordinary shares of Tk.10.00 each for manufacture of Ceramic Stone wares & Table wares. In
addition to sponsors, the project was initially funded by BSB, IPDC & SABINCO. Production started in the later part
of 1993. Approval of prospectus from Securities & Exchange Commission had been obtained on 14th September,
1996. The company was listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited on
7th December, 1996 and on 4th December 1996 respectively.

Nature of Business:
The company is a ceramic industry for manufacture of ceramic stone wares and table wares for local and foreign
markets.

Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Preparation, Presentation and Disclosure of the Financial Statements:

The financial statements have been prepared and the disclosures of information are made in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 1994, International Accounting Standard (IAS) and International Financial
Reporting Standard (IFRS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). The
Statement of Financial Position and Statement of profit or loss and other Comprehensive Income have been
prepared according to IAS and IFRS. "Presentation of Financial Statements” based on accrual basis of accounting
following going concern assumption under generally accepted accounting principles and practices in Bangladesh
and Statement of Cash Flows according to IAS.

Legal Compliance:

The financial statements have been prepared and the disclosures of information were made in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 1994, Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, Listing Regulations of Dhaka
Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) and other laws and regulations applicable in Bangladesh. On the basis of these
regulations, International Accounting Standards (IAS) & International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) were
applied with the applicable standards.

Accounting Estimates, Assumptions & Judgments:

The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity with IFRS that requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies.

Going Concern:
The Company has adequate resources to continue its operation for the foreseeable future. For this reason going
concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements.

Components of the Financial Statements:
According to the International Accounting Standards (IAS) the complete set of Financial Statements includes the
following components:

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June, 2019;

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June, 2019;
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June, 2019;

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June, 2019 and

Notes, comprising a summary of significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information.

Recognition of Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation:

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation in accordance with IAS 16
"Property, Plant & Equipment". Cost represents cost of acquisition of construction and include purchase price and
other directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to working conditions for its intended use, but do not include
any capitalized borrowing cost. No. depreciation is charged on land and land development. Depreciation on all other
Property, Plant and Equipment are computed using the reducing balance method in amount sufficient to write off
depreciable assets over their estimated useful life. Expenditure for maintenance and repairs are expenses; major
replacements, renewals and betterment are capitalized.
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The cost and accumulated depreciation of depreciable assets retired or otherwise disposed off are eliminated from the
assets and accumulated depreciation and any gain or loss or such disposal is reflected in operations for the year.
The annual depreciation rates applicable to the principal categories are

i) Building & Civil Construction 7.5% vi) Car and Vehicles 20%

ii) Plant& Machinery 10% vii) Tools 25%

iii) Deep Tube well 5% viii) Furniture & Fittings 10%
iv) Electric Equipment 10% ix) Office Equipment 15%
v) Other Asset 20%

Depreciation is charged on Property, Plant and Equipment for full year on opening written down value and on
addition during the year from the date of use. Depreciation has been charged to cost of goods sold & administrative
expenses consistently.

Impairment of Assets

The company reviews the recoverable amount of its assets at each reporting date. If there exists any indication that
the carrying amount of assets exceeds the recoverable amount, the company recognise such impairment loss in
accordance with IAS "Impairment of Assets"

Inventories:

Inventories are assets held for sale in the ordinary course of business, in the process of production for such sale or
in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process. Inventories are stated at the lower of
cost or net realizable value in compliance to the requirements of IAS. Costs including an appropriate portion of fixed
and variable overhead expenses are assigned to inventories by the method most appropriate to the particular class
of inventory. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for the inventories less all estimated cost of
completion and cost necessary to make the sale.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and cash at banks of the Company. There is an insignificant risk of
change in value of the same.

Creditors & Accrued Expenses:

Trade & Other Payables:
Liabilities are recorded at the amount payable for settlement in respect of goods and services received by the
Company. These include Advance against Sales, Security and Other Deposits and Other Current Liabilities.

Provisions:
Necessary provision for the current assets which are seems to be doubtful of recovery are made in the financial
statements in conformity with Bangladesh Accounting Standards.

Employee Benefits:
The Company maintains defined contribution plan (provident fund) and Retirement benefits (Gratuity) for its eligible
permanent employees as per applicable laws and regulations.

Defined contribution plan (Provident fund):

The Company operates a contributory Provident fund for its eligible permanent employees. The fund is approved by
the National Board of Revenue (NBR). The fund is administered by a Board of Trustee and is funded by contribution
partly from the employee and partly from the Company as predetermined rates. The contribution is invested
separately from the Company's assets.

Gratuity benefits:
Gratuity benefits are incorporated when an employee is entitled to the benefits depending on the length of services
and last drawn basic salary.

Income Tax:
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Current Tax:
Provision for taxation has been made as per rates prescribed in the Finance Act, 2019, the Income Tax Ordinance,
1984 and as per IAS Income Tax.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Related Party Transactions:

Company is not connected to any related party transaction except as mentioned in note -38. Benefit of key
management personnel includes officials in the ranks of Managing Director, Director, General Manager, Deputy
General Manager, Company Secretary, CFO, Manager and Deputy Manager. The yearly salary involvement is
Tk.18,415,635 as sort-term employee’s benefit. No post-employment benefits, other long term benefits and
termination benefits were paid during the year.

Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets:

Contingent liabilities and assets are current or possible obligations or assets, arising from past events and whose
existence is due to the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events which are not within
the control of the Company. In accordance with IAS Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue has been recognized as per IFRS 15: Revenue from contract with customers under 05 (five) step
approach of recognizing revenue. According to the core principal of IFRS 15, the entity has recognized revenue to
depict the transfer of promise goods or service to custom in an amount that reflects the consideration (payment ) to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchanging for those goods or services.

05 (five) step approach applied are as follows :

i. Identify the contract

ii. Identify the separate performance obligation

iii. Determine the transaction price

iv. Allocate the price to the performance obligations
v. Recognize revenue.

Statements of Cash Flows:

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared principally in accordance with IAS: Statement of Cash Flows and the cash
flows from operating activities have been presented under direct method.

Earnings per Share:

The Company calculates Earning per Share (EPS) in accordance with I1AS: “Earning per Share”, which has been
shown on the face of Statement of Comprehensive Income, and the computation of EPS is stated in the note.
Earnings per Share has been calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Segment Reporting:

No segmental reporting is applicable for the company as required by IAS: “Segment Reporting” as the company
operates in a single industry segment. Though the company has some export but this is very insignificant as such
the geographical territory has also been considered single.

Comparative:

Financial statements are presented as IAS previous year’s figures have been reclassified, re-arranged where found
necessary to provide information that is reliable and more relevant and to conform to the current year's
presentation.

ﬁeporting Period:
The financial statements cover one year from 01July, 2018 to 30 June, 2019.
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Amountin Taka Amountin Taka
30 June 2019 30 June 2018

3.00 Property, Plantand Equipment: Tk.128,385,016.
Details are as under:

Opening Balance 365,555,656 349,110,785
Addition during the year 17,441,695 16,444,871
382,997,351 365,555,656
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (254,612,335)  (245,561,088)
Net written down value as on 30 June 2019 128,385,016 119,994,568

Details of Property, Plant and Equipment has been shown in schedule-1

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Qtyin M.T Value (Tk) Qtyin M.T Value (Tk)
4.00 Inventories: Tk.79,403,960.

Details are as follows:
Raw Materials (4.01) 11,709,250 20,079,297
Work-in process 953 M.T 50,022,426 158 M.T 8,250,823
Finished products 61M.T 4,167,457 301 M.T(Restated) 24,425,420
Stores & spares 12,994,047 (Restated) 12,905,957
Packing Materials 14,921 pcs 510,780 25,100 pcs 570,120

79,403,960 66,231,617

The inventories were physically verified on 30 June 2019 and certified. Raw materials have been valued at
Weighted Average Cost. Work-in-process have been valued at cost of raw materials with proportion of electricity,
gas and factory overhead absorbed in production. Finished products have been valued at cost and realizable
price which is lower and spare parts have been valued at cost.Inventories were mortgaged to Rupali Bank Ltd ,
Ramna Corporate Branch as security of working capital loan.

401 Raw Materials:

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Body,Glaze Body,Glaze and
and Auxiliary Decorative Auxiliary Decorative
M.T Sheet (pcs) M.T Sheet (pcs)
Opening Balance 468 19,808 389 104,148
Add: Purchase durinng the year 5,956 422,400 4506 279,835
Available for use 6,424 442,208 4895 383,983
Less: Issue for Production 6,260 377,208 4427 364,675
Closing Balance 164 65,000 468 19,308
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5.00 Advance Deposits and Pre-payment:Tk. 25,117,768,

[) Advances
ii) Security deposits
i) Advance Income Tax
iv) Bank Margins
v) VAT (Value Added Tax)

1) Advances: Tk. 2,449,830
a) Advance against works
b) Other Advance

ii) Security deposits: Tk.3,561,902
T&T Board
PDB
Bangladesh Oxygen Ltd.
Amin Mohiuddin Foundation
Titas Gas Transmission & Distribution Co. Ltd.
CDBL

iii) Advance Income-Tax: Tk. 6,258,308
Opening balance
Addition during the year

Less: Adjustment against assessment year 2017-2018
Total

iv) Bank Margins:TK. 11,625,700.
L/C Margin
Bank Gurantee Margin

v) VAT (Value Added Tax):Tk. 1,222,028
Opening Balance
Add: Cash Deposit and Vat on Raw materials etc.

Less:Adjustment on local sales
Closing Balance

Amountin Taka

Amountin Taka

30June 2019 30 June 2018
2,449,830 775,646
3,561,902 3,561,902
6,258,308 6,073,920

11,625,700 2,692,450
1,222,028 1,640,521
25,117,768 14,744,439
2,422,427 748,243
27 403 27 403
2,449,830 775,646
145,025 145,025
253,800 253,800
8,000 8,000
811,800 811,800
2,143,277 2,143,277
200,000 200,000
3,561,902 3,561,902
6,073,920 4,691,029
3,951,093 2,963,098
10,025,013 7,654,127
(3,766,705) (1,580,207)
6,258,308 6,073,920
10,777,500 1,844,250
848,200 848,200
11,625,700 2,692,450
1,640,521 1,596,578
51,595,067 45,026,069
53,235,588 46,622,647
(52,013,560) (44,982,126)
1,222,028 1,640,521

a) The Company has no advances which may be classified as doubtfull/bad.
b) No amount was due by the Directors (including Managing Director) and officers of the Company

or any of them severally or jointly with any other person.

¢) No amount was due by the Associated under-taking.
6.00 Accounts Receivable Tk. 464,749

The amount represents receivable against

duty draw back. Age wise breakup is

Exceeding six months

Below six months

Total
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Amountin Taka Amountin Taka

30 June 2019 30 June 2018

7.00 Short Term Investment:Tk. 6,753,031 6,753,031 11,717,600

This represents investment in Fixed Deposit. Such fund has been accumulated for payment of
expenses required for heavy repair and replacement of depreciable assets especially Kiln.Out of
above balance fixed deposit of TK.451,104 has given to the bank as security.

8.00 Cash & Cash Equivalents:Tk. 8,035,420

Cash in hand . 1,727,222 679,600
Cash at Bank
NCC Bank CD A/IC - -
Al-Arafah Islami Bank CD A/C No-11866 12,392 4,488
Rupali Bank Ltd. CD A/C No.-1650 142,817 368,417
Rupali Bank Ltd. CD A/C No.-1595 3,780 3,780
Rupali Bank Ltd. CD A/C No.-7662 3,298,631 1,346,048
United Commercial Bank CD A/C No.-330 451 451
City Bank Ltd. CD A/C No.1402077 600,728 1,427,873
City Bank Ltd. CD A/C No0.1102075735001 287,590 9,661
Agrani Bank Ltd. CD A/C No.-33005504 9,732 9,732
Agrani Bank Ltd. CD A/C No.-562 1,000 1,000
Agrani Bank Ltd. CD A/C No.-22303 1,444 1,444
Bangladesh Shilpa Bank CD A/C No.-113303653 1,743 1,743
Sonali Bank Ltd. CD A/IC No.15609 240 240
Southeast Bank Ltd. CD A/C No.-47598 - 49,511
Mutual Trust Bank CD A/C No.- 1,317,394 597,353
Rupali Bank Ltd. CD AIC No.-158-7474 3,552 3,552
IFIC Bank CD A/C No.-00083325016 950 950
CityBank Ltd. STD A/C N0.31000453/7001 18,106 2,906
CityBank Ltd. STD A/C No0.31000490/7002 13,572 13,572
CityBank Ltd. STD A/C No0.31000536/7003 15,085 15,085
CityBank Ltd. STD A/C N0.3102075735001 808 808
CityBank Ltd. STD A/C No.7004 86,246 64,095
IFIC Bank Ltd. STD A/C No.000836000701 6,657 6,657
Rupali Bank Ltd. F/C A/C No.-95/05 (US$ 7,411.91) 485,280 942,578
8,035,420 5,551,544

Cash -in-hand has been verified and certified.Balances with Banks are confirmed by the certificates.

9.00 Share Capital: Tk. 64,606,500.
(a) Authorized Capital: Tk. 100,000,000
10,000,000 Ordinary share of Taka 10.00 each 100,000,000 100,000,000

(b) Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital:

6,460,650 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10/= each fully paid up:
1) 5,860,000 (2,930,000 ordinary shares before public 58,600,000 58,600,000

issue i.e before 4.11.1996 and 2,930,000 ordinary shares
public issue i.e 4.11.1996) ordinary shares of Tk.10/=

each fully paid up in cash.
2) 600,650 (293,000 ordinary shares in 2010. 6,006,500 6,006,500

307,650 ordinary share in 2011) ordinary shares of Tk.10/=
each issued as fully paid as Bonus Shares.

64,606,500 64,606,500
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(c) The position of Shareholders as on 30th June, 2019 is as follows :

30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Description No. of . Share  No. of No. of Share

:(:ZI: Shares hoI;’mg hi?:::s Shares holding %
Sponsors and directors 7 1,841,072 28.50 7 1,841,072 28.50
Financial Institutions(bank & Insurance) 10 30,210 047 7 27,200 042
Financial Institutions(others) 86 115,601 1.79 110 371,985 5.76
BSRS 1st Mutual Fund 1 1,000 0.02 1 1,000 0.02
ICB investor's Alc 193 13,190 0.20 193 13,190 0.20
IFIC investor's Alc 10 820 0.01 10 820 0.01
Other Investor's Alc - 0.00
Foreign investor (company) - 1 1,000 0.02
ICB Mutual Fund 2 2,020 0.03 2 2,020 0.02
ICB Capital Management 4 440 0.01 4 440 0.01
ICB Unit Fund 1 16,286 0.25 1 121,805 1.89
Others Mutual Fund and Unit Fund 1 270 0.00 1 270 0.00
General Public 7440 4,439,741 68.72 7100 4,079,848 63.15

1,755  6.460,650 100 7,437 6,460,650 100

(d) The Shareholding pattern is as below: 30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Description No. of . Share  No. of No. of Share

:(;Z':r Shares hoI;’mg h?)?gg:s Shares holding %
Upto 500 Shares 6755 406,452 6.29 6521 369,949 5.73
501 to 5000Shares 858 902,803  13.97 783 814,952 12.61
5001 to 10000 Shares 48 327,429 5.07 46 329,363 5.10
10001 to 20000 Shares 38 508,470 7.87 31 424 483 6.57
20001 to 30000 Shares 22 559,120 8.65 18 459,894 712
30001 to 40000 Shares 6 215,030 3.33 8 282,694 4.38
40001 to 50000 Shares 5 230,095 3.56 5 232,257 3.59
50001 to 100000 Shares 13 988,755  15.31 14 1,097,813 16.99
100001 to above Shares 10 2322496 3595 11 2,449,245 37.91

7,155 6,460,650 100 7437 6,460,650 100

(e) There was no preference share issued by the company.

(f) Market Price:

The shares of the company are listed with the Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange
Limited.Quoted market price was TK 247.10 at Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and TK.248.00 at Chittagong Stock

Exchange Limited as on 30 June 2019.

10.00 Revaluation Reserve : Tk. 25,592,345

Details is as follows:

30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Opening Balance 25,592,345 26,383,861
Less:Provision for Deferred T ax on revaluation reserve - 791,516
25,592,345 25,592,345

Revaluation Reserve represents revaluation surplus arising out of revaluation of land & land development of the company as of
29 Feb, 1996 by M/s. Golam Mostafa & Associates (professional valuers) following market rate.
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12.00
13.00

14.00

14.01

15.00

16.00

Taxholiday Reserve: Tk.1,063,500.

Amountin Taka

Amountin Taka

The above amount represents balance carried forward since 1994-95

Share Premium: Tk.14,650,000

Retained Earnings: Tk. (125,507)

Opening Balance

Cash Devidend (2017-18)

Profit /(Loss) after tax for the year

Closing Balance

Defferd Tax: TK. 12,415,401.

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Note-14.01)

Add: Deferred Tax on Revaluation Reserve (Note-10)

Deferred Tax
Book Value of Depreciated Assets
Tax Base of Depreciated Assets

Provision for Retirement benefits ( Gratuity) (note-19.01)
Net Taxable Temporary Difference

Effective Rate

Deferred Tax Liability closing

Deferred Tax Liability opening

Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income)

Cash Credit (secured): Tk. 25,665,411
Details are as under:

Cash Credit (Hypo)

Cash Credit (Pledge)

Loan Against Imported Marchandise (LIM)

30June2019 30 June 2018
1,063,500 1,063,500
14,650,000 14,650,000
(9,250,640)  (19,436,206)
(923,916) .
10,049,049 10,185,566
(125,507) (9,250,640)
12,415,401 10,815,398
. 791516
12,415,401 11,606,014
97,829,415 89,438,967
(46538372)  (41,342,604)
51,291,043 48,096,363
(1,629,439) (4,834,772)
49,661,604 43,261,591
25% 25%
12,415,401 10,815,398
(11,606,914)  (10,454,190)
808,487 361,208
7618874 6,651,884
16,718,429 14,687,609
1328,108 .
25,665,411 21,339,493

The Company is enjoying cash credit facilities from Rupali Bank Ltd., Ramna Corporate
Branch,Dhaka. Interest charged on all credit @ 9.00% to 11.00% . Al the Property, Plant and
Equipment( both present and future) furnished as collateral and floating assets and book debts (both

present and future) charged out as primary securities.

Bank Overdraft: Tk.4,142,370

This represents temporary overdrawn from current account

4,142,370

3,153,107

Annual Report 2018-2019 \45\



17.00 Unclaimed Dividend : Tk. 9,188,145 Amountin Taka Amountin Taka

Year wise break up of the above is as follows: 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Year

1996-97 To 2003-04 2,075,754 2,075,754
2004-05 254,652 254,652
2005-06 590,100 590,552
2006-07 583,968 583,968
2007-08 131,355 131,355
2008-09 418,566 418,566
2009-10 561,080 561,080
2010-11 404,732 404,732
201112 721,316 721,316
201213 762,267 762,267
2013-14 690,702 691,161
2014-15 816,567 817,026
2015-16 1,036,803 1,050,323
2017-18 140,283

Total Amount Tk. 9,188,145 9,062,752

18.00 Creditors, Accrued Exps and Others:Tk. 43,114,632.
Details are as under:

Directors' remuneration 2,180,000 1,780,000
Salary& O.T 11,103,512 12,573,981
Gas bill 7,313,550 7,192,106
Electric bill 1,310,041 2,068,864
Audit fees 225,000 225,000
Workers Profit Participation Fund 1,528,879 753,341
Providend Fund 13,167,182 14,844,148
Others payable 6,286,468 6,036,278

43,114,632 45473,718

19.00 Liabilities for other finance:Tk. 47,847,147.

Securitymoney employees 1,010,187 1,024,987
Securitymoney (Agency) and advance etc. 41,086,683 21,568,186
Provision for Income Tax 3,877,691 3,766,705
Provision for Retirement benefits ( Gratuity) (note-19.01) 1,629,439 4,834,772
Other Provision 243,147 530,248

47,847,147 31,724,898

Income Tax finalised upto Assessment year 2014-15. Assessmet of tax for the year 2015-2016, 2016-
2017,2017-2018 and 2018-2019 remain under process of finalisation.

19.01 Provision for Retirement benefits ( Gratuity ) Tk. 1,629,439

Opening balance 4,834,772 4,410,449
Provision during the year 1,615,355 2,192,060
Less:Payment during the year (4,820,688) (1,767,737)
Closing balance 1,629,439 4,834,772
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Amountin Taka Amountin Taka

20.00 Revenue:Tk.323,854,117 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Break-up as follows
Quantity Value Taka Quantity Value Taka
NetLocal Sales 446018 M.T 322,878,446  2,906.16 M.T 288,605,258
Export Sales 3.82M.T 975671 3584 M.T 6,206,975
Duty Draw Back - 158,031
Total 323,854,117 294,970,264

Amountin Taka Amountin Taka

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
21.00 Cost of Goods Sold: Tk. 255,600,803.
Materials Consumed:
Opening Stock 20,079,297 17,287,121
Purchased during the year 115,709,810 102,909,404
135,789,107 120,196,525
Less: Closing stock 11,709,250 20,079,297
124,079,857 100,117,228
Add: Opening Work-in -process 8,250,823 6,264,966
132,330,680 106,382,194
Less: Closing Work-in-process 50,022,426 8,250,823
82,308,254 98,131,371
Factory Overhead:
Wages, Salaries, O.T & Bonus 63,508,290 64,341,131
P.F Contribution. 1,021,409 1,057,115
Packing Materials 20,677,428 17,149,899
Power, Water & Gas 43,021,799 36,713,198
Insurance 81,388 132,201
Consumable stores 5,059,147 6,262,162
Miscellaneous factory expenses 2,552,353 2,399,503
Repairs & Maintenance 8,359,834 10,334,903
Depreciation 8,960,735 8,269,244
153,242,383 146,659,356
235,550,637 244,790,727
Add: Opening Stock of finished goods 30,105,780 13,452,482
265,656,417 258,243,209
Less: Closing Stock of finished goods 4,167,457 24 425,420
261,488,960 233,817,789
Less: Closing stock of Mould & Sagger 5,888,157 5,680,360
255,600,803 228,137,429
Total production 4224 M.T 3,143 M.T

Repairs & Maintenance includes all factory building repairs & maintainence Tk.194,342 factory
machineries repairs Tk.3,274,022, fuel vehicales Tk.1,051,166 generator fuel Tk. 3,556,825 and
vehicales maintainence Tk.283,479 efc.
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22.00 Administrative expenses: TK. 39,639,108.
Director's Emolument
Rent, Rates & Taxes
Postage, Telegram & Telephone
Office Salaries
P.F Contribution
Printing & Stationery
Religious & Festival Expenses
Legal & Professional and Other fees
Audit fees
Forms & Fees
Utility bill
Motor Vehicles maintenance
Petrol, Oil & Lubricant
Office Maintenance efc.
AGM & Other meeting Expenses etc
Entertainment expenses
Miscellaneous expenses
Depreciation

23.00 Selling and Distribution Expenses: TK. 10,370,076

Office Salaries

P.F. Contribution.

Travelling & Conveyance
Business Promotional expenses
Trade Fair expenses

Transport exps

24.00 Other Income:Tk.1,053,013
Interest on STD Account
Intereston FDR

25.00 Finance cost: Tk. 3,786,378

Bank interest
Bank charges
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Amountin Taka Amountin Taka

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
10,010,000 10,010,000
2,087,760 1,867,140
529,197 494,396
19,577,564 19,341,277
211,390 159,390
157,692 164,202
929,140 290,576
258,000 334,000
258,750 258,750
2,236,745 846,561
302,619 307,875
498,235 471,939
633,631 259,886
66,958 70,170
1,006,376 1,014,632
431,939 399,277
352,600 699,283
90,512 83,528
39,639,108 37,072,882
4,762,545 4,651,785
73,860 72,600
614,507 625,530
1,389,754 2,436,258
973,005 1,064,765
2,556,405 2,130,035
10,370,076 10,980,973
10,730 21,829
1,042,283 690,643
1,053,013 712,472
2,129,446 2,489,721
1,656,932 1,934,911
3,786,378 4,424,632




26.00

27.00

28.00

29.00

30.00

31.00

32.00

33.00

34.00

Amountin Taka Amountin Taka
30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Income Tax Expenses:Tk.3,877,691

Current year tax 3,877,691 3,766,705
3,877,691 3,766,705

Deferred Tax Expenses/Income Tk. 808,487.

Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) (note-14.01) 808,487 361,208

Credit facilities:
There was no credit facilities that has not been availed of at the date of Statement 'of Financial Position.

Trade Debtors Statement:
The company does not have credit sales. As such usual classification of debtors (good, bad, doubtful,
secured/unsecured etc) was not needed.

Aggregate amount due by Directors & Officers:
There was no such amount in the Statement of Financial Position.

Sales - Item-wise:
The company sales Stonewares approx. 123 differentitems with different shapes and different prices
under the brand name Classic Stone.

Number of employees drawing more than Tk. 3000 & less than Tk. 3000 per month:

The factory is labour intensive. There are permanent labours as well as daily labours. The dailylabour
frequently changes and as such it is not possible to keep correct track by name to count the number
annually. However on an average the following is number of workers/femployees (permanent, daily).

i) Workers/Employees drawings Tk. 3000.00 or more per month 760 Nos.
ii) Workers & Employees drawing less than Tk. 3000.00 per month nil.

Claims against the company not acknowledgement as debt:
There was no contractual claim against the company not acknowledged as debt.

Aggregate amount of contracts for capital expenditure:
There was contract for capital expenditure on 30-06-19 JP¥ 44,583,000.
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35.00

Basic Earnings per Share (EPS) :

Basic earnings per shares has been calculated as follows:
Earnings attributable to the Ordinary Shareholders Net

Profit/(Loss) after tax

Number of Ordinary Shares outstading during the year

Basic EPS

Amountin Taka Amountin Taka

30June 2019 30 June 2018
10,049,049 10,185,566
6,460,650 6,460,650
1.56 1.58

Due to higher cost of raw materials EPS slightly has decreased in the year 2018-19 compared to

previous year 2017-18.

36.00

Net Profit /(Loss) after tax

Depreciation

Deferred Tax Expenses /(Income )

Otherincome

Increase)/ Decrease in inventories

Increase)/ Decrease in Accounts Receivable

Reconciliation of Net Operating Cash Flow::

Increase/ Decrease) in Creditors Accrued Expense and Others

(
(
(Increase)/ Decrease in Advance Deposits Prepayment
(
(

Increase/ Decrease) in Liabilities for Others Finance

Net cash inflow from operating activities

'37.00

10,049,049 10,185,566
9,051,247 8,352,772
808,487 361,208
(1,053,013) (T12,472)
8,806,721 8,001,508
(13172,343)  (24,951,223)
318,070 (158,030)
(10,373,329) 514,244
(2,359,086) 10,454,273
16,122,249 (8,246,533)
(0464,439)  (22,387,269)
9,391,331 (4,200,195)

each Director present was paid Tk. 8,000/= per meeting as Board Meeting. Fee.

38.00

Related party transactions

a)Key management personnel compansation
Short term employee benefits (Salary and allowances etc.)

During the year under review 7 (seven) board meeting and four audit committee meeting were held and

30.06.2019 30.06.2018
Directors All managers Directors All managers
Remunaration & allowances 8,940,000 7,802,280 8,940,000 7,850,162
Bonus 1,070,000 603,355 1,070,000 547,564
10,010,000 8,405,635 10,010,000 8,397,726
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39.00

39.01

40.00

41.00

42,00 Disclsure under 1AS-10: Events after Reporting Period:

Net Asset value per share:

Net Asset(39.1)

Number of Ordinary shares out standing during the year.

Net asset value per share

Net Asset:

Total assets
Less:Total liabilities
Net Asset

Net Operating cash flow per share

Net cash generated from operating activities-

Number of ordinary share outstanding during the year.
Net Operating cash flow per share

Amountin Taka Amountin Taka

30June 2019 30 June 2018
105,786,838 96,661,705
6,460,650 6,460,650
16.37 14,96
248159944 219,022,587
142373106 122,360,882
105,786,338 96,661,705
9,391,331 (4,200,195)
6,460,650 6,460,650
145 (0.65)

Increase in Net Operating Cash Flow per share (NOCFPS) for the year (2018-19) under review
compared to that in the preceding year (2017-18) is due to the fact that the advance against sales has

increased.

a) The Factory has been partial laid off since 14.08.2019 for more or less two months for rebuilding old
Glost Kiln. After this rebuilding production loss will be minimized, product quality will be improved and
fuel cost will be reduced. On the other hand Gas price has increased from July 2019 and Salaries &

Wages are raising.

b) The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the Financial Statements as on 27.10.2019
recommended Cash Dividend @ 5% ( Tk.0.50 per share of Tk.10 each ) for the year ended on June
30,2019 to the all shareholders. Except the fact stated above, neither any ‘Non -adjusting Events' nor any

"Adjusting Events'took place after the reporting period.

Annual Report 2018-2019 \51\



ianpoadsel O d 3 ON BN

01=/75'06).L 9 =/5E2096'8 L pabieyo si uoneioaidaq * asn Jo ejep ayp Loy Jeak au Buunp uonippe uo pue anjen umop uayum Buiuado uo Jeak |n) Joj sjesse pexy) uo pabieyd si uoneldaide(

:S9JON

895'766'61)  |880°195°Gv2 . qLLTSE's  |91E'80T'L6T 999'666'69¢ . VL8PVl |S8L0MI'6YE 810z dunf (g uose [ejo]
910'G88'92) | SEETIOYST : 1z'150'  (880°19G S 15826688 | - G69‘)py'Ll [999'SS5°G9€ | gLz aunp og uose ejo)
100 0059 v - 16 PLVyy %W | T . o'y RESE
68199y 00'962'625'} - YA 200°08Y' %01 \Zh'166' - 00061} \2r'ei8’) Qi1 4 g uniuin 4
19L'9EY 0096€'38'} - 18€'0L 60078} %Gl 151167 - 020°€6 121861 Jawdinb3 souQ
9 00'676'L€ - 8¢ L'Lge %z | 590'8ee | - go0'8ee §100]
eS| oozorvese | 79695 |0vL008T %C | 659G | - - 675'L19°G) S3jolyen 100 g 18
1€6'G19'G 00062227 - QTS [GL0'188Y %01 122'960° ) - GIZ'99€')  |9v6'1.9%6 Juawdinb3 Aundag g 010813
Tn0'205 00'247'€09 - €Yo |ve0'LLS %G | 6I5G0L] | 0 615504} llow 89 | deag
CTLL0YS | 00L2eserBaL | - 189°GrL'S  |0¥9'68C ¥9) %l lossusc |- 68926671 [198'7/G0LC SOUBUIYIBH B Jueld
€0G‘LLY' Ve | 00'€62'520'29 - 0188597 |€87'99€'6S %G, |961205'% - 10L'S26'7 660°L26'€6 SUOONASU0D |7 g Buipjing
109'665°0¢ - i i ’ %0 109'G65°0¢ ) i 409'665'0¢ Jusuidojanap pue pue pue

6IOK0cU0 | 6900 |uewssnipy e_“hM”p% wﬂm.as opesaidsg| SHOTTE  [wauisnioy e_n_m”p% emm.ms

npawnop | RSERIOL | RS | oo smee | oomy | L | S | e | aoueg Siejnofed

B NOILYIO3dd3d 1509

eye] ulunowy
| ON 3NpPayds

6102 ANNr HL0E LY SY SINIWAIND3 8 LNV1d 'AL¥3dO¥d 40 3TNAIHIS
‘GLTSAIYLSNANI JINVYHII QUVANYLS

2\ Annual Report 2018-2019

N



ANNEXURE-1

Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule Xl, Part Il of the Companies Act, 1994:

A. Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para-3, Note 4 (i) and (ii)

Employees

position of the companyas at 30 June, 2019:

Complied -Disclosed in Note No-32
Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part I, Para 3:

Para Compliance status of disclosure of
Schedule XI, Part I, Para 3
3(i)@) | The turnover Complied -Disclosed in Note No- 20
3 (i)(b) t | Commission paid to the selling agent Not Applicable
Brokerage and discount on sales, other than the usual trade ,
30e) | Not Applicable
discount.
36)(d)(i) The value of the raw materials consumed, giving item wise Complied -Disclosed in Note No-4.01
breakup as possible. and 21
3(i)(d)(ii) | The opening and closing stocks of goods produced. Complied - Disclosed in Note No-21
. In the case of frading companies, the purchase made and the .
3(i)(e) , , Not applicable
opening and closing stocks.
, In the case of companies rendering or supplying senvices, the ,
3(i)(® . ) . , Not Applicable
gross income derived from senvices rendered or supplied.
Opening and closing stocks, purchases and sales and
30)(a) consumption of raw materials with value and quantity break-up for | Complied -Disclosed in Note No- 4.01
g the company, which falls under one or more categories i.e. and 21
manufacturing and/or frading.
In the case of other companies, the gross income derived under ,
[ Not Applicabl
3(0() different heads. ot Applicable
Work-in-progress, which have been completed at the , , ,
3(1)() Prog pieled atine Complied- Disclosed in Note No-21
commencementand at the end of the accounting period.
30)0) Provision for depreciation, renewals or diminution in value of Complied -Disclosed in Schedule No-
fixed assets. 1
Interest on the debenture paid or payable to the Managin
300K | | Part o paya and Not Applicable
Director, Managing Agentand Manager.
, , , Complied -Disclosed in Note No- 26 &
3(i)(I) | Charge ofincome tax and other taxation on profits. 97
3(i)(m) [ Revised for repayment of share capital and repayment of loans Not Applicable
Amount set aside or proposed to be set aside, to reserve, but not
including provisions made to meet any specific liability, ,
3(i)(n)(i) angp . ysp Y , Not Applicable
contingency or commitment, know to exist at the date as at which
the balance sheetis made up.
3(i)(n)(ii) [ Amount withdrawn from above mentioned reserve Not Applicable
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Compliance status of disclosure of
Schedule XI, Partll, Para 3

30)(0)() fL\m.o.u.ntset as.ide to Provisions mgde for meeting specific Not Applicable
liabilities, contingencies of commitments.

Amount withdrawn from above mentioned provisions, as no

longer required.

Expenditure incurred on each of the following items, separately

for each item: (i) Consumption of stores and spare parts (ii) Power

and Fuel (iii) Rent (iv) Repairs of Buildings (v) Repairs of

3(i)(p) |Machinery (vi) (1) Salaries, wages and bonous (2) Contribution to

provident and other funds (3) Worksmen and staff welfare

expenses to the extent not adjusted from any previous provision or

reserve.

Not Applicable

Complied -Disclosed in Note From 21,
22,23 and in Income Statement

B. Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 4:
Payment/Perquisites to Directors & Managers
Complied and Disclosed in Note- 38
C. Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 7:
Details of production capacity utilization:

Installed Capacit Actual Capaci

Particulars | MTp y Production Ut'I'p t.ty

(In MT) (In MT) ilization
2018-2019 Annual Production capacity 6,200 4224  68.13%
2017-2018 Annual Production capacity 4,500 3,143  69.84%

Due to the operation of the newlyinstalled Tunnel Kiln, the production and sales of the factory has increased.

D. Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part I, Para 8 (C) :
Raw materials:

Items Total Purchase (BDT) Consumption (BDT) % of consumption
of total purchase
2018-2019 2017-2018 2018-2019 2017-2018  2018-2019 2017-2018
Raw materials 115,709,810 102,909,404 124,079,857 100,117,228 107.23% 97.29%
Spare parts 4,939,440 9,680,709 5,059,147 6,262,162 10242% 64.69%
Packing materials 20,618,088 17,251,244 20,677,428 17,149,899 100.29% 99.41%
Total 141,267,338 129,841,357 149,816,432 123,529,289
Value of export:
Particulars In foreign currencies (US$) In BDT
Export 11,742.60 975,671

i) The company has not incurred any expenditure in foreign currencies for the period from 01 July, 2018 to 30 June,
2019 on account of royalty, know-how, professional fees, consultancy fees and interest;
ii) The company has not earned any foreign exchanges for royalty, know-how, professional fees, consultancy fees and

interest;
iii) The Company has not remitted any foreign currencies on account of dividend.
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STANDARD CERAMIC INDUSTRIES LTD.
Amin Court (3rd Floor), 62-63 Motijheel C/A, Dhaka-1000.

PROXY FORM

) SO EEURR being a member hereby appoint
MIEL TMIES. VIS, ettt ettt s e e+ ettt eten ekttt e e e e e e oo e e R Rttt e e e e e e e e e e nneeenneeees

as my proxy to attend and vote for me and on my behalf at the 35" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held on December 28, 2019 at 10:00 A.M and at any adjournment thereof. As witness my hand this

........... day of 2019.

(Signature of the Proxy) (Signature of the Shareholder)
Revenue

Date : Stamp Holder of Share(s)
Tk. 20.00 Dated :

(Signature of the witness)

RegisterFolioBODNo. | | [ [ [ [T T I I [T [ 1 I 1 | | |

Note: A member entitles to attend and vote at the general meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his/her
stead. The proxy form, duly stamped, must be deposited at the Head Office of the Company not less than 48 hours
before the time fixed for holding the meeting.

SIGNATURE VERIFIED

(AUTHORISED SIGNATURE)

STANDARD CERAMIC INDUSTRIES LTD.
Amin Court (3rd Floor), 62-63 Motijheel C/A, Dhaka-1000.

Identification card to attend 35th AGM on 28.12.2019

[, the under Signed ........cocovvvrerrrnrreceeeiens or my Proxy or Mr./Mrs./MSs..........cccceeeeeeecceeenes
hereby record(s) presence at the 35th Annual General Meeting of 2019.

Name of Shareholder: ........coooeeeeeiiiecee s
AQArESS & oo
Numbers of Share: ........ccccevvvveireevennn.

RegisterFalioBODNo. | | [ [ [ [T T I I [T [ 1 1 1 | | |

(Signature of the Proxy) Signature of the Shareholder

Note: Please fill -in the blanks & present the card at the entrance.
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- Standard Ceramic Industries Ltd. SSRSTo,
Mzﬂ% (Manufacturer of Stoneware Tableware) BN
Amin Court (3rd Floor), 62-63 Motijheel Commercial Area, Dhaka, Bangladesh.

o, T § Phones: PABX 956 1947-8, 957 7033, Fax : (880-2) 956 1950
LR E-mail : info@standardceramic.net, Web: www.standardceramic.net STANDARD CERAMIC
BANGLADESH Factory : Saydana, K.B Bazar, Joydebpur, Gazipur-1700 BANGLADESH
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